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October 3, 2023 
 
VILLAGE OF WARWICK PLANNING BOARD 
77 MAIN STREET 
WARWICK, NY  10990 
 
ATT: JESSE GALLO, CHAIRMAN 
 
RE:   M&L EQUITY AUTO LLC & MANN PROPERTIES 
 18 ELM STREET (SBL 210-11-16.22) 
 42 ORCHARD STREET (SBL 210-11-5) 
 L&G #1802.76 
 

Dear Mr. Gallo and Planning Board Members: 
 
We have reviewed the following documents submitted for the M&L Equity Auto and Mann 
properties: 
 

• Cover letter from Robert Krahulik, dated 7/30/23 

• Planning Board Application, signed 5/8/23 and 5/11/23 

• Short EAF, dated 5/8/23 

• Site Plan prepared by Friedler Engineering, PLLC, dated 6/26/23. 
 
Introduction: 
 

The proposed action involves the transfer of a 5,963-square-foot parcel of land from the 
residential Mann property, located at 42 Orchard Street, to the M&L Equity Auto “car wash” 
property located at 18 Elm Street.  The purpose of the project is to eliminate the existing 
encroachment of M&L facilities across the rear of the Mann property.  We have enclosed an 
aerial photo of the project site from the Orange County GIS website, showing the approximate 
property boundaries. 
 
The M&L property is located within the Light Industrial (LI) zoning district.  The Mann property is 
located within the Residential (R) district.  The properties are not located in the Village’s historic 
district.   
 
It is our understanding that no construction or land disturbance is proposed. 
 
Review Comments: 
  

1. We have attached a list of items commonly required for subdivision approval.  Because no 
construction is proposed, the Board can waive those elements related to site disturbance 
and construction.  It appears that the following items should be added to or revised on the 
plan: 
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a. Name and address of the adjoining property owner to the north of properties. 
b. Existing utilities.  Are there are any utilities located within the proposed transfer parcel? 
c. Surveyor’s certification 
d. I believe that the plan should be entitled “Subdivision Plan”. 
e. The zoning data table should be revised to indicate that the lot depth of the Mann property 

will be reduced. 
 
2. Because the proposed lot realignment will reduce the nonconformity of the Mann property, a 

variance will be needed for lot area. 
  
3. The site plan indicates that the existing gravel area extends past the Mann property onto a 

portion of Lot 210-11-4, the Dreyhaupt property.  This should be addressed by the applicant. 
  
4. The properties are located within the 100-year flood plain and regulated floodway of the 

Wawayanda Creek.  A FEMA FIRMette map is attached.  Because no construction is 
proposed, an application for development in flood hazard areas is not required. 

  
5. Question 15 on the Short EAF (flood plain) should be answered “Yes”. 
  
6. Planning Board attorney Robert Dickover has provided a memo regarding legal aspects of 

the application. 
 
 
Sincerely,  

Engineering & Surveying Properties, PC, Village Engineers 

 

David A. Getz, P.E. 
  

cc:  Robert Dickover, Planning Board Attorney 
 










